
 

 

 
 

 

Meeting papers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint 
Committee 

 
Wednesday 16 March 2016 at 10.00 am 

 
Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

Date Published:8 March 2016       

 

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee 

 

Wednesday 16 March 2016 at 10.00 am 

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester 

AGENDA 

 

   

   

1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

To receive declarations by members of: 
a) Personal interests (including their nature); 
b) Prejudicial interests under the Code of Conduct. 

 

Laura Gibbard 
 

2 MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 9 December 2015. 
 

Laura Gibbard 
 

3 GFIRST LEP GROWTH DEAL ACTIVITY (Pages 5 - 6) 
 

To receive an update report on GFirst LEP Growth Deal activity. 
 
Please  note that the spreadsheet referred to in paragraph ‘b’ of this report 
is only available in hard copy. A copy will be available for public inspection 
at the meeting or can be obtained in advance by contacting the 
Democratic Services Unit on 01452 324205.  
 

Pete Carr 
 

4 SKILLS POLICY FOR GLOUCESTERSHIRE (Pages 7 - 10) 
 

To receive a report on the skills policy for Gloucestershire.  
 

Peter Holmes 
 

5 GLOUCESTERSHIRE INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT PLAN (Pages 
11 - 32) 
 

To receive a report on the progress with the development of the 
Gloucestershire Infrastructure Investment Plan.  
 
 

Mike Dawson 
 



 

 

     

 

   

6 LGA GLOUCESTERSHIRE CASE STUDY (Pages 33 - 44) 
 

To receive a presentation on a recent Case Study focused on 
Gloucestershire commissioned by the LGA and to comment on the further 
development of the document. 
 

Nigel Riglar and 
David Marlow 
 

7 BUSINESS RATE POOL  
 

To receive a verbal update on the current position of the Business Rate 
Pool. 
 

Sandra Cowley 
 

8 FUTURE MEETING DATES  
 

To note that the Committee is due to meet on the following dates in 2016: 
 
Thursday 23 June 
Wednesday 7 September 
Wednesday 30 November 
 
All meetings to start at 10am (this allows meetings of the Economic 
Growth Scrutiny Committee to take place on the same day). 
 

Laura Gibbard 
 

Membership –  Cllr Mark Hawthorne, Cllr Patrick Molyneux, Cllr Robert Vines, Cllr Paul James, 
Cllr Steve Jordan, Cllr Geoff Wheeler and Cllr Christopher Hancock 
Roman Cooper and Pete Carr 

 (a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer, 
Jane Burns �01452 328472 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) 
prior to the start of the meeting. 

 (b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Laura Gibbard, Democratic Services Adviser  
�:01452 324205/fax: 425850/e-mail: laura.gibbard@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

 (c) 
 
 
 
 
(d)  

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS 
 Members are required to sign the attendance list. 
 
 
Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (tel 01452 425230) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting. 
 

 

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions. 

 



 

- 1 - 

 

GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT 

COMMITTEE 

 
MINUTES of the meeting of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee 
held on Wednesday 9 December 2015 commencing at 10.00 am at the Cabinet Suite 
- Shire Hall, Gloucester. 

 
 

PRESENT 
MEMBERSHIP: 

 

 Cllr Mark Hawthorne 
(Chairman) 
Cllr Steve Jordan 
Cllr Robert Vines 
 

Cllr Geoff Wheeler 
Cllr Chris Hancock 
 

Substitutes: Cllr Colin Organ 
Cllr Brian Robinson 
 

Apologies:  

 
27. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
 
No declarations of interest were made. 
 

28. MINUTES  

 
 
Resolved 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 9 September be approved as a correct 
record. 
 

29. DEVOLUTION  

 
 
Mike Dawson, Chief Executive, Tewkesbury Borough Council, updated the 
Committee on the progress made on developing the Devolution Bid for 
Gloucestershire, explaining that currently the particular focus was providing more 
detail in the Planning/Transportation/Housing work-stream. 
 
If the Devolution Bid was successful, the role of the Committee would eventually be 
subsumed within the Combined Authority. 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

- 2 - 
 

30. GFIRST LEP UPDATE REPORT  

 
 
Pete Carr, Deputy Chief Executive of GFirst LEP updated the Committee on the 
progress made with the implementation of the various agreed Growth Deal projects. 
 
Members agreed that there was some merit in having more details provided for 
projects within each district.  This could be as a separate document.  It would also 
be useful for both this Committee and the Scrutiny Committee to have sight of the 
full risk management profile for each agreed project. 
 
It was generally felt that the comments in the Government’s recent Comprehensive 
Spending Review announcements that there would be a major focus on cyber 
security could be advantageous for Gloucestershire in that it could allow the county 
to develop into the centre of excellence for the whole country in this area. 
 

31. INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT PLANNING  

 
 
The Committee received a presentation from Nigel Riglar, GCC Commissioning 
Director : Communities and Infrastructure and Lisa McCance, Programme Director, 
Shared Intelligence on the development the Gloucestershire Infrastructure 
Investment Pipeline (GIIP). 
 
Members were reminded that this was a prioritised list of infrastructure projects to 
use when bidding for external funding as opportunities became available.  Each 
project had been considered against the following criteria: 
 

· How it fitted with Gloucestershire’s Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) 
 

· What would its contribution to growth in the economy be? 
 

· Would it be deliverable within a 5 year time-span? 
 

· Value For Money 
 

· Did it cover a new area not already included within another project? 
 
The Committee requested that full details of the risk ratings for each project be 
circulated. 
 
It was confirmed that it was quite likely that an identified project could move up the 
priority list if an opportunity to implement that particular project was identified.  All 
the projects, including those currently included in Category E, would benefit the 
economy of Gloucestershire; it was just a question of finding a source of funding for 
each of them.  Since the aim of the GIIP was to cover all sources of external 
funding, it was likely that further development would be required on individual 
projects once a potential funding opportunity had been identified so that the project 
could be customised to fit the funding source. 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

- 3 - 
 

 
The implications for Gloucestershire (and the Cheltenham area in particular) with 
regards to the likely expansion of GCHQ following the CSR announcements were 
discussed in some detail.  The conclusion was that a project of this nature would 
clearly need to be added to the GIIP since, although this could be seen as a 
national initiative, there would be knock-on effects on the county’s current 
infrastructure (increased demand for housing, school places, new roads etc.).  The 
‘ask’ would be for funding to provide this local new infrastructure. 
 
Having considered all the information before it the Committee 
 
Resolved to: 
 

1. Confirm the new projects and re-categorisation of existing projects within the 
GIIP (see paragraph 5 and Annex 1 of the report);  

2. Recommend the immediate infrastructure priorities identified to the Gfirst 
LEP Board; 
 

3. Noted the ‘business growth’ priorities identified by the Gfirst LEP Board; and, 
 

4. Agree the GIIP Review process described in the report (paragraph 12). 
 

32. GROWTH FUND PIPELINE PROJECT UPDATE  

 
 
The Committee received a report from Pete Carr, Deputy Chief Executive, GFirst 
LEP, on the refreshed Growth Fund Project Pipeline.  Members attention was 
drawn to the additional background information now available for project and it was 
confirmed that the LEP would primarily be focusing on the highest priority projects 
for the next round of the Growth Deal. 
 
Having considered the proposals, the Committee agreed that the following 
comments should be forwarded to the LEP Board: 
 

· The ask of Government should be ambitious which could be scaled down if 
the amount of money available was less than anticipated. 

 

· A detailed break-down of the scores for each project was preferred, rather 
than just the economic impact and total figure. 

 

· Information on what level of score would mean that a project could not stay 
in the Growth Fund Pipeline would be helpful. 

 
33. FUTURE MEETING DATES  

 
 
Resolved 
 
That the Committee’s meetings dates for 2016 are noted as follows: 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

- 4 - 
 

 
Wednesday, 16 March  
Thursday,     23 June 
Wednesday, 7 September 
Wednesday 30 November  
 
 
All meetings start at 10am to allow meetings of the Economic Growth Scrutiny 
Committee to take place on the same day. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAIRPERSON 
 
Meeting concluded at 11.20 am 

 
 

Page 4



GFirst LEP Update for GEGJC March 2016

Gloucestershire Growth Deal

a) Project funding

The current status of the projects that are going through the approval and funding process is as follows:

Outline

Business

Cases

Approved

Conditional

funding

letters

issued

Due diligence

commenced

Due

diligence

completed

GFirst LEP

Board

approval for

funding

agreement

Funding

Agreement

in place

All projects All projects 13 projects:

GREEN; STEM

projects x 3;

airport;

Blackfriars;

Cyber;

Growth Hub

expansion;

Growth Hub

Network;

Berkeley

Bridges;

Cinderford

spine road;

RAU rural

innovation

centre;

Gloucester

Central

Transport

Hub

13 projects:

GREEN;

STEM

projects x 3;

airport;

Blackfriars;

Cyber;

Growth Hub

expansion*;

Growth Hub

Network;

Berkeley

Bridges;

Cinderford

spine road;

RAU rural

innovation

centre;

Gloucester

Central

Transport

Hub

13 projects

and 4 further

projects with

conditions

being

worked

through with

Board sub

group and/or

GCC prior to

funding

agreement

(RAU rural

innovation;

Growth Hub

Expansion;

Growth Hub

Network;

STEM )

6 projects

Agenda Item 3

Page 5



b) Project reporting

The latest version of the project reporting spreadsheet is provided to the Committee with this update

and this shows timelines for the projects and funding. It also shows any variance from what has been

planned and agreed with BIS in our spend profile.

c) Monitoring

All projects are now inputting to the LOGASNet system and GFirst LEP’s newly appointed Projects

Manager is working with project promoters and their respective LEP leads to better record and monitor

the outputs and outcomes from all the projects.

GFirst LEP’s annual review with BIS took place on 3
rd

December and feedback from BIS has been very

positive.

d) Evaluation

The final two evaluations included within the Growth Deal have been discussed with project promoters

and will be scoped in detail and commissioned in the next two months. These are for the Berkeley Green

project managed by Stroud and South Gloucestershire College and the Cyber Security Training and

Conference Centre project managed by University of Gloucestershire.

e) Future rounds of Growth Deal and ‘pipeline’ projects

There is still no confirmation from Government about the timing of a further Growth Deal funding round

and we are expecting some changes to the criteria that Government will want projects to meet. With

this in mind, together with the feedback from GEGJC’s last meeting and the LEP Board’s last meeting, a

sub group of the LEP Board has worked with LEP staff to review the current pipeline of projects and has

made a number of recommendations to the LEP staff team. The LEP business and professional services

sector group has also acted in a ‘critical friend’ role to pilot a review of two pipeline projects and make

recommendations to strengthen the business cases. The LEP is now reviewing whether to extend this to

other projects.

Infrastructure projects that have been included on the GIIP list managed by the Senior Officer Group and

which are appropriate to be considered for Single Local Growth Fund will be incorporated in the pipeline

for the next Growth Deal funding round.

Pete Carr, GFirst LEP

03/03/16

Page 6



 

 

Joint Committee, 16 March 2016 

A Draft Skills Policy for Gloucestershire 

Purpose of Paper 

The Joint Committee is asked to comment on a draft skills policy for Gloucestershire. 

The policy will be used to help shape a skills strategy for the county in preparation for 

any devolution of funding for skills.  

Introduction  

The Department for Business Innovation and Skills (BIS) has announced in its policy 

guidance to the Skills Funding Agency1 (SFA) that it expects to see emerging greater 

localisation of decision making about the use of public funds for what is now termed 

the Adult Education Budget (AEB) which combines allocations for skills development 

and community learning. This follows the principle established in recent years that 

provision should be aligned to current labour market conditions and future economic 

development. All providers in receipt of SFA funds will need to demonstrate that they 

are using their best endeavours to meet the needs identified by local enterprise 

partnerships (LEPs) and, where there has been a devolution deal, the combined 

authority. Gloucestershire County Council has been working closely with GFirst LEP 

to prepare for devolution of the AEB. Whilst allocations for 2016/17 will continue to be 

managed by the SFA directly with providers, this could change in future years as 

there is greater devolution of decision making.  

Whilst a devolution deal is still being negotiated for Gloucestershire, GCC and GFirst 

LEP has put together a policy document to set out what a draft skills policy for 

Gloucestershire might look like. The aim is to provide a framework for the Joint 

Committee, and later the Gloucestershire Combined Authority and GFirst LEP, to 

develop their skills strategy in response to the needs of the people and businesses of 

Gloucestershire. Any policy would also help inform the review of state funded post 16 

education and training due to commence in September 2016.  

1. The National Context 

Having adults with the right skills is a key driver for national growth and prosperity. 

The national skills policy aims to address the following issues; 

· Upgrading skill levels  

· Improving the quality of further education, skills training  

· Increasing the role of Apprenticeships as a route to a skilled workforce 

· Encouraging individuals and employers to invest in skills 

· Tackling youth unemployment 

                                                           
1
 Skills Funding Agency Priorities & Funding for 2016-17. BIS 15.12.15  

Agenda Item 4

Page 7



 

 

Localism is handing some of the public investment to locally accountable bodies to 

ensure there is flexibility to meet local need. This policy will be used to determine 

how Gloucestershire uses this flexibility.  

2. The Importance of Skills to Gloucestershire 

The Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) for Gloucestershire sets out how our economy 

will grow by 2022 through creating 34,000 jobs, more than 5,000 new 

apprenticeships and creating a gross value added (GVA) uplift of 4.7% - almost £500 

million, significantly outstripping the long term GVA average achieved in 

Gloucestershire.  

To achieve this ambitious plan will require significant investment with 47,000 new 

homes, 180 hectares of employment land and in the region of £800m of critical 

infrastructure planned as the major contributor to GVA growth. None of this can be 

achieved without growing the county’s workforce and providing the skills needed to 

both manage and deliver this plan. That will require upskilling of the present 

workforce and growing the workforce to meet demand. In common with the rest of 

the country, Gloucestershire has an ageing workforce which will increase the 

pressure on the availability of suitably skilled labour and those entering the labour 

market for the first time.  

Ensuring the workforce has the right skills is primarily the responsibility of employers 

but the preparation of those entering the labour market for the first time and the 

deployment of public investment in skills in line with labour market needs should be a 

priority for commissioning 

Gloucestershire already benefits from one of the lowest unemployment claimant 

counts in the country but 17.9% of the working age population (16-24) are 

economically inactive. The cohort will include students, those looking after a family 

and those with long-term illnesses but, according to the latest Labour Force Survey 

(September 2015), 25.4% of those who were inactive wanted a job. There will also 

be individuals in the remaining 75% who may have given up on getting work but 

could be re-skilled and given the confidence to work if their multiple needs were 

adequately addressed.  

Helping those seeking work and those who are economically inactive gain the 

confidence they need to become employable, find work that is a good match for their 

skills and experience and develop the skills needed to enter work will be a priority.  

The policy does not address variances in need. Any skills strategy based on this 

policy would need to look at the local areas within the count to consider both 

employer skills needs and supply issues.  

3. Localisation 

Gloucestershire has submitted a devolution bid which, if successful, will see the 

Leadership Gloucestershire partnership2 become a more formal Combined Authority. 

                                                           
2
 Leadership Gloucestershire comprises  Leaders of the county council and six district councils, the LEP Chair, 

the Police & Crime Commissioner and Chair of the NHS Clinical Commissioning Group 

Page 8



 

 

This body would be accountable for a greater share of public investment in the 

county, including devolved budgets for adult education.  

The Combined Authority will act as the commissioner for the adult skills budget using 

the collective knowledge and understanding of the labour market, employer needs, 

and the needs of individuals from GFirst LEP and employers in both the public and 

private sectors. GFirst LEP will establish an Employment & Skills Board to oversee 

the development and implementation of the strategy. The model likely to be used will 

be one of co-commissioning, drawing upon the experience of other partners such as 

DWP and providers such as colleges to allocate resources to meet the desired 

outcomes.  

A Skills Policy for Gloucestershire 

The devolution proposal for Gloucestershire set out a vision of a Gloucestershire 
where: 

• Our democracy and civil society is renewed and reinvigorated through 

decisions being taken as close to our communities as circumstances and 

efficiency permit. 

• Pooled budgets and combined decision-making enable the innovative use of 

resources so that we can redesign services around preventing harm as well 

as ensuring people get world class services when they need them. 

• Public services provide maximum value for local business making the 

county a desirable location for growth. Meanwhile duplication and inefficiency 

in public sector Gloucestershire is robustly addressed. 

 

The ‘asks’ of government for our communities were built around: 

· Accelerating economic growth 

· Health & Wellbeing 

· Community Safety 

 

The council has developed a policy to support vulnerable adults and young people 

access employment opportunities. This is already yielding good outcomes and is vital 

if all members of Gloucestershire’s community are to benefit from economic growth.  

 

The aim of the skills policy for Gloucestershire is to address economic growth by 

increasing skill levels within the county to the benefit of both residents and 

businesses. All levels of skills are within scope but particular emphasis will be placed 

on higher level technical and professional skills and providing skills for those needing 

to re-engage with learning as a route into employment or re-employment.  

 

Subsidiary aims will be to improve health & wellbeing and community safety through 

the acquisition of higher level skills and employment for those who want it.  

 

A further dimension will be addressing the particular skills needs of employers in 

different parts of the county and ensuring that provision provides the capacity to grow 

the local skills base in response to local economic development strategies.  

 

Page 9



 

 

Our commissioning will be guided by the vision and aims.  

 

The outcomes we will seek to achieve are; 

· More young people entering the labour market with the skills and knowledge 

required to make them employable 

· Growing a larger and more skilled workforce in line with employer/ labour 

market needs 

· Increasing the number of Apprenticeships available in the county 

· Reducing the number of unemployed and economically inactive people of 

working age 

· Skills developed in response to the particular economic developments of each 

part of the county 

Our success will be measured primarily by improvements to economic growth and 

reductions in economically inactive adults or working age.  

Next Steps 

Subject to the views of the Joint Committee, the draft policy will be discussed with; 

· providers in the county, especially those in receipt of SFA funding.  

· Through GFirst LEP, employers throughout the county 

The final document will need to be agreed by the GFirst LEP Board and the Joint 

Committee. Subject to a devolution deal being agreed, the next step will be to 

establish an Employment & Skills Board tasked with developing a detailed skills 

strategy in line with the final policy.  

Page 10



Gloucestershire Infrastructure Investment Plan AGENDA NO:  

Meeting  Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee  

Report author 
Mike Dawson – Chair GEGJC Senior Officer Group 
Tel no: 01684 272001  
Email: Mike.Dawson@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
  

Background 
documents 

1. GEGJC Infrastructure Investment Pipeline (GIIP) (see Annex 1) 
 
2. District Council Infrastructure Delivery Plans: 
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/extra/article/107553/Gloucestershire-
Strategic-Infrastructure-Delivery-Plan-SIDP 

http://www.stroud.gov.uk/info/plan_strat/stroud_idp.pdf 
http://www.fdean.gov.uk/media/Assets/ForwardPlan/documents/AllocationsPl
an/FOD_IDP_WD_Issue_16_Feb_2015.pdf 
http://www.gct-
jcs.org/Documents/EvidenceBase/JCSIDPMainReportISSUE2013-10-15.pdf 
http://consult.cotswold.gov.uk/portal/fp/infrastructure_delivery_plan/draft_infra
structure_delivery_plan_2013?tab=files 
 
3. GFirst LEP - Gloucestershire submission under Growth Deal: 
http://www.gfirstlep.com/Our-Priorities/Our-Vision/  
 
4. National Planning Policy Framework Consultation Document 

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file
/488276/151207_Consultation_document.pdf 
 
5. GFirst LEP report to GEGJC – also on agenda. 
 

Location/Contact 
for inspection of 
background 
documents 

 
As listed above or on request from the report author. 
 
 

Main consultees 
A wide range of public and private sector representatives have provided input 
to the various Council and GFirst LEP processes that have informed the 
development of the Gloucestershire Infrastructure Investment Pipeline and 
the recommendations set out in this report.  
 

Planned dates 
This report has been written in advance of the March 2016 Spending Review 
and as such there may be key considerations linked to this report. If Local 
Growth Fund is contained within the announcement, Gloucestershire will be 
well placed to submit prioritised businesses cases for funding.  
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 11



Purpose of report 
 

This report: 
 

1. Provides an update on the progress made against the GIIP; 
2. Introduces and outlines new projects for inclusion; and, 
3. Identifies the key work streams to progress the GIIP.  

 

 

Recommendations 

The Joint Committee resolves to: 
 

1. Confirm the new projects and categorisation of projects within the GIIP 
(see paragraph 3); and 

2. Approve the work streams to take the GIIP forward into delivery. 
 
 

Reasons for 
recommendations 

To update and enable the GEGJC and GFirst LEP Board to understand the 
progress made in developing the immediate infrastructure and business 
growth priorities for external funding opportunities. 
 
The development of a single set of priorities has supported the devolution 
process and enabled other agencies to understand the Gloucestershire 
growth priorities. 
 

Resource 
Implications 

There are no direct resource implications associated with this decision. 
However, each project promoted will be subject to its own funding 
arrangements and the Accountable Body of each fund available will have a 
set criteria relating to the fund itself. Where resources can be funded as part 
of the project cost, this approach will be taken. 
 

 
 
Background  
 

1. At the December meeting of the GEGJC, the Committee approved the 
comprehensive Gloucestershire Infrastructure Investment Pipeline (GIIP) and 
acknowledged the process adopted to bring forward key infrastructure. This 
process ensures new projects that deliver growth enabling infrastructure can be 
added and existing projects progressed.  

 
Recent GIIP changes 
 

2. The need to constantly refresh the GIIP is essential. The process agreed at the 
last GEGJC meeting has enabled the proposal of two new projects and an 
update to the risk and interdependency profile. The updated GIIP has started to 
reference this and through a mapping exercise further project relationships will 
be identified. 

 
3. Two new projects are proposed by Cheltenham BC for inclusion onto the GIIP. 

These are: 
 

• Cheltenham High Street  

• West Cheltenham Employment Land  

Page 12



 
4. Cheltenham High Street 

Cheltenham High Street needs significant investment in order to maintain its 

position as a prime retail and leisure destination. Through the Cheltenham Task 

Force an improvement plan has been developed that sets out the need for 

investment. This plan sets a template for wider place-making and contributes to 

both the retail and visitor economy; tourism being an important strand of GFirst 

LEP’s Strategic Economic Plan (domestic and overseas). 

CBC with GCC will commit significant available resource, but there remains a 

shortfall which is estimated to be £495k. If supported, this creates the 

opportunity for a step change in the High Street environment which could be 

exploited with additional funding to create a flagship public realm at this location. 

This project will be categorised as D - Developer-led infrastructure projects with 

infrastructure requirements that may or may not be fully funded.  

 
5. West Cheltenham Employment Land  

A feasibility study for West Cheltenham is currently listed on the GIIP as it has 

already been identified as a priority. The addition of the wider requirement to 

deliver the next stage of employment land is being added in order to understand 

the full extent of its potential.  

Given the potential government requirement for an expanded GCHQ operation in 

the area, consideration for bringing forward this site is key. The site is currently 

identified as a ‘safeguarded’ allocation within the JCS meaning that it was 

originally being considered for release from the green belt post 2031.The advent 

of the Strategic Economic Plan and the changing economic climate has created 

the circumstances where an earlier phased release of land is becoming a distinct 

possibility as is being explored through the Examination in Public (EiP) currently. 

Whilst such an outcome would be subject to a 6-week period of public 

consultation it could enable accelerated employment growth. 

 

Early intervention funding to deal with infrastructure challenges, particularly 

highways, will enable a smoother delivery programme in order for the 70 

hectares of employment focused land to be strategically released and critically, 

to be delivered in a timely manner. 

 

It is likely that a package of measures will consider and possibly include: 

• Improvements to M5 Junction 10/11/11a 

• Improvements to Arle Court roundabout 

• Arle Court park and ride 

• Traffic management improvements including signals, maintenance etc. 

• Cycle facility improvements 

• Parking management in surrounding areas 

Page 13



• Public transport improvements in terms of service and infrastructure 

enhancements 

This project will also be designated as Category E - Infrastructure projects that 

are a longer-term priority. 

 
6. In both cases the projects are considered infrastructure priorities and business 

plans are being created to ensure routes to deliver and funding can be identified. 
 
Work Streams 
 
7. In order to advance the GIIP and ensure the infrastructure requirements 

progress, a work plan has been developed. As an early initiative, this work plan 
will monitor proposed changes to the national planning policy framework in 
reference to bringing forward growth and policy objectives in support or against 
current plans. The most recent example of which is the consultation on changes 
to the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) plus the proposed Housing 
and Planning Bill, which references significant changes to affordable housing, 
supporting new settlements and starter homes, brownfield land and the delivery 
of commercial and employment opportunities.                                                       

 
A House of Commons Library briefing note on the Housing and Planning Bill is 
available at:  
http://researchbriefings.files.parliament.uk/documents/SN06418/SN06418.pdf 
 

8. The work plan will also take into account developments at a local level relating to 
the Gloucestershire Devolution discussions to ensure appropriate opportunities 
are progressed.  
 

9. It sets out over the next year the key strands of activity required in order to 
deliver the GIIP. These key areas are:  

• Financing and Funding – including scenario planning; analysis of funding 
routes such as S106 analysis, CIL charging structures and devolution 
opportunities 

• Performance and Risk Management – establishing a programme and 
project risk level; process refinement; business case development; and 
measuring the economic growth 

• Mapping – creating a visual representation of the GIIP; identifying the 
inter-dependencies; aligning with funding opportunities; and new project 
review 

• Governance – ensuring updates are provided to stakeholder groups; and 
aligning to devolution milestones 

 
 

Funding opportunities 
 

10. A funding opportunity through the Transport Fund LSTF (Transition Fund) has 
recently been published offering £20m from the £580m total available towards an 
Access Fund to plug the gap before full LSTF funding is available in 2017. The 

Page 14



penultimate entry on the GIIP – cycling infrastructure – will form a bid going 
forward to this fund by the end of March.  
 

11. At the time of writing, an announcement regarding external funding opportunities 
such as a further round of the Local Growth Fund is anticipated as a result of the 
Government’s March Budget. With the creation and regular review of the GIIP, 
projects that are suitable will go forward for full business case development.  
 

12. In light of this, the Senior Officer Group (SOG), which includes LEP 
representatives, has identified a number of immediate infrastructure priorities for 
promotion for external funding; in effect projects from the GIIP considered to be 
‘shovel-ready’ during 2016/17. As calls for proposals open, the SOG will ensure 
that projects which meet the criteria set identified will be progressed. This will be 
done in conjunction with GFirst LEP to develop business cases which deliver 
ambitious growth outcomes for Gloucestershire. A separate update on previous 
Local Growth Deal funding opportunities forms part of the LEP’s report to the 
GEGJC agenda.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Lisa McCance - Shared Intelligence 
In support of the GEGJC SOG 

7
th
 March 2016  

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



 

LOCAL ECONOMIC GROWTH CASE STUDY AGENDA NO:  

Meeting  Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee 

Report author 
Nigel Riglar 
 
Tel no: 01452 328470 

Email: nigel.riglar@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

Background 
documents 

Local Government Association (LGA) Economic Growth Case Study 

Location/Contact 
for inspection of 
background 
documents 

Attached at Appendix A 

Main consultees GEGJC Senior Officer Group representatives, including gfirst LEP. 

Planned dates N/A 

Purpose of report 
 

To receive a presentation on the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Case 
Study, produced by the Local Government Association (LGA) and to note 
that the County Council has commissioned work to develop it further. 
 

Recommendations 

To note the contents of the LGA Economic Growth Case Study and 
comment on proposed scope of the additional work commissioned by the 
County Council. 
 

Reasons for 
recommendations 

To produce practical materials that help position Gloucestershire as a good 
location for Government investment in economic growth. 

Resource 
Implications 

c. £2-3k of consultant time. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 33



MAIN REPORT CONTENTS 
 
 
Background  
 
1. During February 2016 the Local Government Association (LGA) published four ‘Local 
Growth Case Studies’; one of these focused on Gloucestershire (see Appendix A). The Senior 
Officer Group would now like to build on the initial work done by the LGA to showcase further 
good practise in the County to Government in order to: 
 

· influence national policy thinking; and, 

· to reinforce the fact that Gloucestershire is a good place to invest public money in 
economic growth and regeneration. 

 
2. A number of Government departments, including DCLG, DfT and HMT, are currently asking 
for good practice examples around: 
 

· Helping Government ‘to make things happen’ by supporting DCLG to deliver its 1 
million homes over the next 5-years target; including providing practical and evidence 
based intelligence about current barriers and constraints; 

· Local Councils joining up Government Department ‘do-ers’ through a ‘single dialogue’ 
to enable growth and regeneration; including enabling the use of available land 
(potentially involving Compulsory Purchase Orders) and the programming of advanced 
infrastructure; 

· Using the local authorities inherent ‘sense of risk’ to minimise governance and 
partnership  costs of programmes such as the Local Growth Fund; 

· Providing examples of where major infrastructure projects are being used to ‘lever’ 
skills development and local employment for project delivery and more widely;  

· Identifying and illustrating how small infrastructure interventions are unlocking larger 
growth opportunities; and, 

· Imaginative use of funding and financial instruments to enable growth and regeneration. 
 

3. The original consultant commissioned by the LGA, David Marlow, has been secured by the 
County Council to produce a ‘Gloucestershire Growth Showcase’ that provides a: 

 

· Standalone document; and, 

· Case studies that can be used in ‘refreshes’ of policy, lobbying and marketing 
documents, including the SEP, devolution prospectus, external funding bids and inward 
investment materials 
 

4. The showcase will contain: 

· a general introductory section drawn at least partly from the LGA case study;  

· around 6 local 'exemplars' - a side of A4 for each describing what the exemplar is; why 
it is important; what results it has achieved to date; what lessons have been learnt; how 
with Government support it could be developed further; and, 

· A concluding section on Gloucestershire's ambitions for the future and how it can help 
Government deliver economic growth. 

 

Page 34



5. The show case will be available by April 11. The Committee is asked to note the original 
LGA Case Study and provide any comments on the proposed scope of the additional work. 
The final document will be shared with central government departments / agencies and 
national local government representative and professional bodies.  
 
Options 
6. The option to do nothing exists but this would not allow the Councils and gfirst LEP to 
continue to reinforce the local commitment to delivering economic growth and to influence 
national policy development. 
 
Risk assessment   
7. The main risk is that Gloucestershire does not successfully position itself in terms of its 
commitment to delivering economic growth and misses out on Government and private sector 
inward investment. 
 
Officer advice 
8. To note the LGA case study and support the County Council’s commissioning of additional 
work. 
 
Equalities considerations 
 
9. Not applicable – the ‘showcase’ will describe projects that have already been the subject of 
due regard considerations. 
 
Consultation feedback 
10. Senior officer Group representatives were supportive. 
 
Performance management/follow-up  
11. To complete the project by April 11 and to successfully disseminate the outputs to key 
stakeholders. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



The future of council leadership of local growth - case studies report, 

December 2015: A Gloucestershire perspective 

Case studies

The case studies are high level. They comprise desk research of relevant ONS/NOMIS statistics, 

review of documentation provided by the councils themselves, and a case study visit to each of the 

councils from 6-12 November 2015 (so before SR2015 outcomes were known). 

Thereafter, the cases are written up to describe local context; experiences of effective interventions 

to enable growth; vision/ambitions; leadership and partnership working; and future 'asks' of national 

government. A short summary and graphic of each case is provided in the substantive report, with 

the full case study reproduced in the appendix.  

The four cases are not presented as representative of LAs as a whole. However, some comments and  

observations of the four as a cohort, relevant to the post-SR2015 context, are suggested below.  I am 

grateful for contributions and support from all LA leads and partners. However, the narrative and any 

opinion is wholly the author's, and not necessarily the views of the LA contributors. 

Page 37



Gloucestershire County Council: Occupying the northernmost area of England’s South-west, 

Gloucestershire County and its 6 districts has a population of 611,000 and 322,000 jobs in an 

economy worth over £14 billion with per capita levels at roughly UK averages. 

Someone unfamiliar with the county may be forgiven for perceiving of Gloucestershire as a leafy, 

well-to-do part of England but the Leader of Gloucestershire County Council, Cllr Mark Hawthorne, 

knows that the county cannot afford a laissez-faire approach to economic growth. Faced with a 

rapidly growing elderly population, and GVA and productivity growth rates below UK averages over 

the last fifteen years, there is a recognition that the county’s economy needs to grow for it to provide 

the vital public services and opportunities for new and existing communities. 

Fortunately Gloucestershire has significant assets on which to build, including average and top tier 

performance in key economic indicators (employment, skills, enterprise etc); and a strong industrial 

profile in knowledge-based, high and medium tech manufacturing, digital and creative sectors. 

So, what is Gloucestershire’s vision and set of priorities?  

It’s about creating and safeguarding jobs; building new homes; improving qualifications and creating 

more apprenticeships – and growing the economy by nearly £500m in value by 2021. These results 

will be achieved, principally, through a four pronged focus on business and innovation support; 

nuclear, renewables energy and engineering sector, a growth zone focused mainly along the M5 

corridor), and transport infrastructure. 

Going forward on a strong foundation of partnership working. 

Central to Gloucestershire’s growth offer is partnership working.  The GFirst LEP, Gloucestershire’s 

Local Enterprise Partnership, and a joint leaders growth committee provide the overarching vision 

and strategy for growth.  There is already a track record of success, including:   

a Gloucestershire Business Rates Pool, where a proportion of the pool's dividend being is 

allocated by a joint economic growth committee of the 7 councils  

a Joint Core Strategy of the three councils (Cheltenham, Gloucester, Tewkesbury) most 

involved in the largest 'growth area' in the county (to deliver 31000 homes). This involves 

Tewkesbury agreeing around 50  of Cheltenham and Gloucester's unmet housing need. 

 The 'Fastershire' partnership between Gloucestershire CC and Herefordshire Council will 

have completed BT roll-out to Gloucestershire premises by December 2015, and agreed an 

ultrafast rural programme (for an initial 6500 premises) with an independent provider.   

Looking ahead, Gloucestershire has put forward an ambitious offer in how it intends to do more.  In 

their 'We are Gloucestershire' devolution bid the partnership sets out how the councils will align and 

coordinate services for more efficient and effective delivery. They are committed to a universal core 

strategy and local plans adoption by 2017; and thereafter to alignment of planning, economic 

development and Strategic Economic Plan work programmes to ensure accelerated delivery of 

employment and housing growth. The bid seeks to move towards establishment of a Combined 

Authority, with shadow arrangements from May 2016. 

The graphic below demonstrates what the partners in Gloucestershire are looking to achieve.  There 

is much that the partners can do by better alignment and coordination of activities but to really boost 

the economic prospects of Gloucestershire their devolution bid makes 40 local growth 'asks' of 

central government.    

Page 38



Whilst most of the asks are familiar to other areas, focusing around planning, transport and 

infrastructure, housing, economic development, skills, and employment powers and resources, they 

also include a number of more ‘nuanced’ and specific national asks, including: 

A more organic commitment from government to share ownership of Gloucestershire 'big ticket' 

priorities, bringing themselves and their development networks/partners to the top tables of 

localised decision-making 

Significantly greater levels of national policy and programme ambition around broadband and 

mobile telephony infrastructure investment  

A willingness to bring schools into strategic local skills, employment and productivity policies 

Reform of the Planning Inspectorate (PINS) and government's own approach to determining 

local planning policies and major decisions to make them much more rapid and decisive 

An enabling and supportive regime for council house-building across tenures and types of 

provision (i.e. not just affordable, social-rented), recognising the development industries' 

multiple market failures in housing delivery (and its economic and productivity impacts) 

Gloucestershire’s approach is an important illustration of how cohesive councils in two-tier, non-

metropolitan areas with relatively strong local assets and capabilities can lead and shape local growth 

policy and intervention strategies at scale; and give central government confidence that 'devolution 

deals' will be delivered.  A fuller write up of Gloucestershire can be found in Appendix One. 

Observations and comments from the four growth case studies 

As stated above, the four case studies are neither comprehensive in themselves, nor statistically 

representative of LAs as a whole. Nevertheless, they do share a number of collective characteristics 

which the author considers important for the LGA and local government sector in progressing its local 

growth ambitions and negotiations with government. 

Firstly, the four, each in their own way, demonstrate the passion and richness of the 'local'. Whether 

district, county, or unitary, individual LAs have detailed understandings, perspectives, relationships, 

and the ability to turn these into distinctive, (nationally)-important, deliverable agendas for local 

growth. As government negotiates 'devo-deals' ( with intermediate tiers of widely-variable 

governance, geographies, and track records of partnership working), new 'settlements' need to 

empower individual LAs to lead and manage their ambitious agendas. 

Second, there are two different dimensions to devo-asks - but both are crucial. The first is the 

achievement of 'proper' devolution - the transfer of decision-making, resources and responsibility 

(including risk) to local leadership teams. This is probably articulated more strongly in places further 

along the devolution journey (like Sunderland and Wakefield in this cohort).  

Sometimes, as important, though, is the committed sign-up of central government departments and 

agencies to local priorities; and necessary machinery of government changes to put that sign-up into 

practical effect. This is particularly prominent in geographies and functions where co-design and co-

commissioning is more appropriate than full devolution at this stage in the 'devo-deal' process.  

Page 39



Over 2015-20 government both needs to be able to genuinely devolve, and to be proactive, 

committed role players at the 'top-tables' of local decision-making and delivery management. This 

will, at times, be a tricky balancing act for both local and national leaders.  

Related to this is a third point about the pace of devolution journeys. Each of the LAs have evolved 

strategies and approaches to place-development over decades:- 

reinvention following savage industrial restructuring in Sunderland and Wakefield's cases;  

gradual coming together of districts and county to reach better understandings of where 

growth can occur, and what public investment is needed to deliver it, in Gloucestershire;  

learning to shape very rapid population growth 'responsibly' (in economic and environmental 

terms) in Kettering. 

If government is seriously committed to sustainable, enduring devolution, it needs to allow areas to 

go at their own pace, organically - rather than rushing into intermediate tier devo-agreements which 

are shallowly bought into by local signatories and have zero-sum consequences for areas left behind.  

None of these nuances are intended to restrict or retard the current national and local enthusiasm 

and energies being put into devolution propositions and governance reforms. The case studies also 

affirm the stimulus government policies have provided for innovation in thinking and practice of local 

growth leadership, governance and delivery management. 

The case studies illustrate Gloucestershire, Kettering, Sunderland and Wakefield's enthusiasm for 

leading and delivering enhanced local growth. The challenge - post-CSR will be agreeing and 

implementing the detailed agreements that will turn this enthusiasm into practice.  

Page 40



Appendix One: The four case studies in full 

Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) 

Local context: The GCC geography is the 

northernmost area of England's south 

west - bordering Midlands to the north, 

and Wales to the west.  It comprises seven 

LAs - GCC itself, and the districts of 

Cheltenham, Cotswold, Forest of Dean, 

Gloucester, Stroud and Tewkesbury. With 

a population of 611,000 (ONS, MYE2014) 

and 322,000 jobs (NOMIS), this is a 

£14.1bn GVA economy (latest ONS 

figures, 2013), with per capita levels at 

roughly UK averages (99.5, 2013). 

Key challenges facing the area in terms of 

local growth have been how to turn their 

very significant assets and capabilities into consistently strong performance. Notwithstanding  

average and top tercile performance in key economic indicators (employment, skills, enterprise etc); 

a very strong industrial profile in knowledge-based, high and medium tech manufacturing, digital and 

creative sectors; GVA and productivity growth rates have been below UK averages over the last 

fifteen years. Having reached a peak GVA per capita of 107.5  of UK averages in 2003, by the latest 

ONS figures (for 2013) this had slipped back to 99.5  per capita and 92.2  per job filled. 

This economic context is accompanied by lower than England average population growth rates 

(8.1  cf to 9.4  2001-14, ONS MYEs) forecast to continue through the decade, with a rapidly 

growing elderly component. Over 65s are forecast to rise from 18.8  to 22.2  of the population in 

the decade to 2021, compared to England averages of 16.4  to 18.7 .  

The institutional geography of the area is relatively simple. The two-tier 7LA structure has a single 

contiguous Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP), Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC)/Constabulary, 

and Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG)/Health and Wellbeing Board (H&WB). This has enabled 

those key organisations to propose a wide ranging 'We are Gloucestershire' devolution bid to 

government (September 2015) encompassing accelerated local growth, improved health and care, 

and safer communities, in a Combined Authority (CA) construct. 

Experience of intervention effectiveness: Gloucestershire LAs consider they have a credible 

track record in laying leadership and institutional foundations for meeting their key challenges. 

They have a business-led LEP (Gfirst) whose roles and duties in local growth are differentiated from 

and accepted by the LAs. The LAs have established a statutory economic growth committee (GEGJC). 

Together they have agreed the Gloucestershire strategic economic plan (SEP), a pipeline of prioritised 

and programmed investment projects to progress it, and the Gloucestershire Infrastructure and 

Investment Fund (GIIF) resourcing appropriate infrastructure projects. The Local Transport Board 

(LTB) has determined transport priorities supporting the SEP, together with M5/A40 agreements on 

aligning Highways England and LTB/GCC projects and programmes. 

Page 41



The seven LAs have agreed the Gloucestershire Business Rates Pool, together with a proportion of 

the pool's dividend being allocated by GEGJC in support of SEP priorities. The three councils 

(Cheltenham, Gloucester, Tewkesbury) most involved in the largest 'growth area' in the county (along 

the M5 corridor and badged as 'Growth Zone' in the SEP) have agreed a Joint Core Strategy 

(delivering 31000 homes) currently in the examination phase. This involves Tewkesbury agreeing 

around 50% of Cheltenham and Gloucester's unmet housing need. It is supported by joint evidence 

bases, analytic models, and a statement of cooperation with Stroud ( the fourth Growth Zone LA). 

The LAs have a track record of project and programme delivery. This includes LTB and associated 

GIIF/GPF transport investments, but also a range of other interventions. 

For instance, the 'Fastershire' partnership between GCC and Herefordshire Council is a bespoke 

broadband infrastructure and services programme. It will have completed BT roll-out to 

Gloucestershire premises in December 2015, and has agreed a phase two ultrafast rural programme 

(for an initial 6500 premises) with an independent provider - Gigaclear. The area also achieved two 

Housing Zone designations and HCA Capacity funding to deliver housing and employment land 

around M5 J9 and Gloucester city centre. 

Vision, ambition and priorities: The LAs and the LEP agree the SEP as the overarching statement 

of their growth ambitions. The SEP headline deliverables include 33,909 new and 2,125 safeguarded 

jobs; 3,200 new homes; 6,108 qualifications and 5,421 apprenticeships - growing the economy by 

£493m GVA by 2021. These results will be achieved, principally, through a four pronged focus on 

'growth hub' (business and innovation support), GREEN (nuclear and renewables energy and 

engineering 'centre of excellence'), growth zone (employment growth mainly along the M5 corridor), 

and key (mainly transport infrastructure) 'enabler' interventions.     

LAs and GEGJC have accepted lead roles in this process. These are outlined in some detail in the 'We 

are Gloucestershire' devolution bid. The bid seeks to move towards establishment of a Combined 

Authority (CA), with shadow arrangements from May 2016. The CA will have the seven LAs as 

constituent members, with LEP and CCG Chairs, and PCC as co-opted non-constituent voting 

members. The CA will oversee the county's collective priorities in planning, transport and 

infrastructure; economic development; health and wellbeing; and community safety. 

In terms of planning, the councils are committed to universal core strategy and local plans adoption 

by 2017; and thereafter to alignment of planning, economic development and SEP work programmes 

to ensure accelerated delivery of employment and housing growth. This includes appointment of a 

Strategic Planning Commissioner, single evidence base, lead councils for specific strategic schemes, 

shared workforce and work programme delivery management, and simplified planning and licensing 

regimes across the county.  

Alongside planning, the councils are also seeking a coordinated approach to public land deployment 

and exploitation - including their own holdings. 

For transport, the councils have offered a single infrastructure investment fund, aligned highways 

maintenance budgets, exploration of CIL pooling, and GCC underwriting of development work (for 

the A417 'Missing Link' scheme - one of three road priorities) Transport will be led by a Transport 

Investment Board sitting under the Combined Authority. 

Page 42



For housing, the devo-bid's focus builds on 'growth zone' strategic sites and Housing Zone 

designations to address rural housing, productivity and quality standards. The councils will seek (in 

partnership with HCA)  to develop a single Housing Investment Plan, a single approach to drive up 

standards and quality of provision, and explore funding sources - including use of social impact bonds 

- for rural, affordable and starter homes provision. 

For economic development, the councils are committed to producing a road-map towards more 

joined up LA delivery, aligned with the LEP's 'Growth Hub'. 

On skills and employment, there is a commitment to full participation in FE 'Area Review'(s), and to 

local delivery management of  apprentices and careers service. This is to be led by a LEP/CA-

convened Employment and Skills Board, and support for new commissioning arrangements.  

Future employment services (Work Programme etc) are sought to be commissioned and delivery 

managed locally in partnership with DWP. An interesting dimension of their approach is the 

relationship to health and care strands of Gloucestershire's devolution ambitions - e.g. reference to 

nurses training; extension of 'Troubled Families' caseworker approaches to other target beneficiaries. 

Finally on local growth, GCCs existing support for 'Fastershire' superfast broadband roll-out has 

already produced important results - which the councils wish to extend significantly over future 

phases of national programmes. 

Partnership working and building relationships: The Gloucestershire case study does 

demonstrate an effective, evolutionary approach to driving and enabling growth in two tier LA areas; 

between LAs and business-led LEPs; and between growth and public services reform agendas. 

'Leadership Gloucestershire', established in 2011, is a voluntary association bringing together the 

seven LA Leaders, and the leaders of CCG, PCC and Constabulary, and Gfirst LEP. It has produced the 

devolution bid to government and determined its pace, scale and scope. 

Relationships between LEP and LAs have matured impressively - with shared understandings of roles 

and responsibilities across and between the LAs and the LEP itself. This has allowed GCC to play an 

appropriate public funding Accountable Body role; and the seven LAs to establish and operate the 

GEGJC for their contributions to growth agendas. 

Finally the county council and six districts have developed a range of shared, pooled and distinctive 

instruments for progressing growth ambitions. Besides GEGJC, the business rates pool and joint 

investment fund(s) represent '7LA' collective approaches. The Joint Core Strategy arrangements for 

the major growth zone areas of the county show where a three-district approach is more appropriate 

than a 7-LA construct (with close collaboration with Stroud as a fourth district).  More generally, the 

case study visit suggested the collaboration had moved from an 'equal shares' to a 'fair shares' based 

on shares of growth approach to resources allocation - a strong indicator of the growing maturity of 

partnership working across the LAs. 

Future asks of and agendas with central government (and its agencies): The devolution bid 

makes 40 local growth 'asks' of central government going forward - alongside health and care, 

community safety, and governance agendas, some of which are also directly related to local growth. 

Most of the asks follow the now relatively orthodox local growth menus for enhanced devolution of 

planning, transport and infrastructure, housing, economic development, skills, and employment 

powers and resources. In Gloucestershire's case they range in character across:- 

Page 43



major items of direct devolution of functional resources (e.g. transport, adult skills); and/or 

alignment of related funding regimes (e.g. transport) to reduce multiple bidding processes 

co-design and joint commissioning arrangements determined at local level (e.g. HCA on 

housing, Environment Agency on flood protection, DWP on Work Programme, various 

business support and innovation programmes);  

specific more modest asks (e.g.  multi-year Growth Hub funding at a minimum £500kpa) 

financial stability of five year settlements, a full-localised Business Rates Retention scheme, 

and capital receipts freedoms and flexibilities 

assistance with the processes leading towards a CA, and on issues like public estate 

rationalisation and deployment 

Perhaps the more distinctive, nuanced national 'asks' surfaced during the case study visit are:- 

A more organic commitment from government to share ownership of Gloucestershire 'big 

ticket' priorities, bringing themselves and their development networks/partners to the top 

tables of localised decision-making 

Significantly greater levels of national policy and programme ambition around broadband 

and mobile telephony infrastructure investment - thereby unlocking and leveraging local 

delivery and growth impacts 

A willingness to bring schools into strategic local skills, employment and productivity policies 

Reform of PINS and government's own approach to determining local planning policies and 

major decisions to make them much more rapid and decisive 

An enabling and supportive regime for LA house-building across tenures and types of 

provision (i.e. not just affordable, social-rented), recognising the development industries' 

multiple market failures in housing delivery (and its economic and productivity impacts) 

Concluding comments: The Gloucestershire case study is an important illustration of how cohesive 

LAs in two-tier, non-metropolitan areas with relatively strong local assets and capabilities can lead 

and shape local growth policy and intervention strategies at scale; and give central government 

confidence that 'devolution deals' will be delivered.  

Page 44


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 GFirst LEP Growth Deal Activity
	4 Skills Policy for Gloucestershire
	5 Gloucestershire Infrastructure Investment Plan
	GIIP MASTER Programme Book 08.03.16

	6 LGA Gloucestershire Case Study
	Appendix A gegjc 2


